
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Brian Brock, President       Ana Espinoza, Vice President 
Zachary Taylor, Treasurer               Mario Manfredini, Secretary 
Gretchen Kostelny, Commissioner 
 

Berwyn Park District 
Board Meeting 

Proksa Park Activity Center  
3001 S. Wisconsin Ave, Berwyn, IL 

April 15, 2025, at 6:00pm 
Agenda 

 
I. Call to Order – Roll Call of Commissioners      (action) 

II. Pledge of Allegiance     
III. Adoption of Agenda                  (action) 
IV. Acceptance of Minutes      (action) 

a. March 18, 2025, Board Meeting  
V. Public Comments 

VI. Correspondence 
VII. Financial Report 

a. Superintendent of Finance & HR Report  (action) 
VIII. Agency Report 

IX. West Suburban Special Recreation Association (WSSRA) 
X. Unfinished Business 

a. Board Manual      (action) 
b. Park District Foundation 

XI. New Business 
a. Disposal Ordinance 
b. Proksa Pond 
c. Mowing Bid 

XII. Commissioners’ Comments 
XIII. Executive Session 

a. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific 
employees. 

b. The purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held for 
the purpose of discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired. 

c. Discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under this Act, whether for purposes of 
approval by the body of the minutes or semi-annual review of the minutes as mandated by Section 
2.06 

d. Litigation, when an action against, affecting or on behalf of the particular public body has been 
filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds that an 
action is probable or imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall be recorded and 
entered into the minutes of the closed meeting. 

XIV. Action from Executive Session              (action) 
XV. Adjournment                 (action) 
 
The next regular scheduled meeting of the Board of Commissioners is May 20, 2025, at 6:00pm at Proksa Park 
Activity Center.  
The next Committee meeting of the Board of Commissioners is May 6, 2025, at 4:30pm at Freedom Park 
Administration Building.  
Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact Director 
Fallon at 708-788-1701, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Minutes of Monthly Board Meeting 
Berwyn Park District 

March 18th, 2025, at 6pm 
Proksa Park Activity Center 

The regular monthly meeting of the Berwyn Park District Board of Commissioners was called to order at 
6:05pm by President Brock.
Commissioners in attendance: Brian Brock, Ana Espinoza, Mario Manfredini, and Zachary Taylor.  
Absent: Gretchen Kostelny 
Staff in attendance: Cathy Fallon (Executive Director), and Cindy Hayes (Superintendent of Finance and 
HR)  

Agenda: A motion made by Manfredini seconded by Taylor to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 
approved. 

Minutes: A motion made by Manfredini, seconded by Espinoza to approve the minutes from February 
18, 2025, Board Meeting and March 4, 2025, Committee Meeting. Motion carried. 

Public Comments: Suzanne Pois is concerned about children’s safety due to the removal of the chain 
link fence surrounding the children’s garden area. She stated that Berwyn Roots will plant natural 
buffers along the borders. She asked where the board minutes were posted. She said the calendar 
section on the district’s website needs to have more information. She would like to see a link on the 
district’s website to Berwyn Roots’ page. Claire Clark asked if the bench near the playground at Hessler 
Park would be replaced. Janel King stated that a resident told her that they are thrilled with all the 
updates at Proksa Park. She also stated that pizza boxes are being left all over the picnic tables at 
Freedom Park. Commissioner Taylor suggested messaging and signings to the public to clean up their 
trash. 

Correspondence: no correspondence. 

Financial Report: A motion made by Taylor, seconded by Manfredini, to approve March’s payables in 
the amount of $51,907.53 and February’s payroll $77,149.93 for a total of $129,057.46. Roll call: Brock- 
aye, Espinoza- aye, Kostelny-absent, Manfredini- Aye, and Taylor- aye. Motion carried. The Schedule of 
Investments Report was reviewed. The KS State Bank CD matured on March 5th. The district will 
purchase a new CD in the amount of $217,000 at 4.150%.  

Agency Report: The report is in the packet. Director Fallon went over the programs and enrollment 
numbers. There are sixty participants registered for soccer. The marketing manager made a YouTube 
video demonstrating to parents- how to register their child for summer camp. 

West Suburban Special Recreation Association (WSSRA): the March 11 minutes are included in the 
packet. Director Fallon asked if any of the commissioners are interested in attending the Derby Gala 
Fundraiser for WSSRA on May 3, to let her know. Director Marianne Birko can come to a board meeting 
to update the commissioners on WSSRA programs and participation. 

Unfinished Business: The board policy manual is still being developed. 



New Business: Park District Foundation- Attorney Mike Roth has given the district examples of bylaws 
and paperwork to start the process. We need to find people who would like to serve on this board. 
Come to the committee meeting with questions and ideas on how this foundation will look. Director 
Fallon is participating in the City of Berwyn’s ADA transition plan. Oates and Associates is the firm 
contracted with the city to conduct the study.  

Commissioners’ Comments: Commissioner Taylor asked what the next step for the Proksa project is. 
Director Fallon responded that the design phase is next. More than likely, the paths will remain in the 
same place but will be renovated. Under the OSLAD grant, the district will be able to replace about ¼ 
mile of paths. Renovating all the paths in Proksa Park is contingent on the Trails Grant. (The district is 
waiting to see who the recipients of this grant are.) Director Fallon is meeting with Aquascape to discuss 
options for the pond. Hitchcock will start preparing designs for Proksa Park.  

Executive Session: none. 

Meeting Dates: April 1st, 2025-Committee Meeting at Freedom Park Administration Building at 4:30pm. 
April 15th, 2025- Regular Board Meeting at Proksa Park Activity Center at 6pm. 

Adjournment: A motion made by Manfredini, seconded by Espinoza to adjourn at 6:59pm. Motion 
unanimously carried. 

Attested to by: 

_________________________________________ 
President: Brian Brock 

_________________________________________ 
Recording Secretary: Cynthia Hayes 



DATE: 4/15/2025 
TO: The Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Cindy Hayes, Superintendent of Finance and HR 

Financial Report RE: 

A. Schedule of Investments
B. April Payables (Action Roll Call) 
C. April 2025 Payables/ March 2025 Payroll and Payroll Liabilities

Check Reconciliation Report and 
Paid Invoice Listing Report included 

D. Treasurer's Report
E. Scholarship Report
F. General Ledger (GL) Report

lwrw  uparks.org 

:r;-o I :--  <·o, ilk \ ,  r. 
Bern, 11. I L  60 IO  

708- 788- l 701 

(Action Roll Call) 





















































































3701 S Scoville Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708-788-1701

berwynparks.org 

DATE: 4/15/2025 
TO: The Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Cathy Fallon, Executive Director 
RE: Agency Report  

Statement of Economic Interest: All current Commissioners have been contacted by Cook County to file 
their Statement of Economic Interest. The filing must be completed by April 20, or the County will assess 
a fine.  

Closed Session Minutes: Attached is a schedule for Closed Meeting Minutes Review. The Board will be 
required to enter a closed session to review and decide what actions to take for destruction or retention 
of minutes.  After we have completed the enclosed schedule, we will begin a regular 6-month review of 
closed minutes.  

We have 94 kids signed up for Spring Soccer. 
We have 10 kids signed up for tennis. 
We have 6 kids signed up for volleyball. 
We have 6 kids signed up for baseball class. 
We have 20 kids signed up for basketball class. 
We have 5 kids signed up for disc golf and 3 adults. 
We have 9 kids signed up for Little Ninjas. 

We have 7 kids signed up for Alphabet Soup 
We have 12 kids signed up for hand sewing. We were able to offer another class, so both are full. 
We have 10 kids signed up for Tinkergarten. 
We have 6 kids signed up for preschool day off. 

We have 9 signed up for LEO – Hemingway’s Bistro. 
We have 7 signed up for Switzerland. 
We have 13 signed up for the garage sale. 

We have 3 sponsors for the Egg Hunt. 
We are working with the Berwyn Public Arts Initiative and hosting their first Lantern Parade scheduled 
for October 4th at Proksa. 

Spring cleanup in flower beds and planters has been completed.  
The preschool room at Proksa was painted.  
The baseball fields have been prepped for the 2025 season.  
County Tree Service has signed and provided all documentation to begin in our parks. 



3701 S Scoville Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708-788-1701

berwynparks.org 

DATE: 4/15/2025 
TO: The Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Cathy Fallon, Executive Director 
RE: New Business  

• Disposal Ordinance: Included is the disposal ordinance with supporting pictures. These items
have been stored in Liberty basement. These items are past useful life, no longer the correct
version or have been damaged by the conditions in Liberty basement.

• Proksa Pond: We had an informative meeting with Aquascape. They are working on two
scenarios with proposals for the Board.

• Mowing Bid: The bid opening was held Friday April 11 at 10 am. There were 3 bidders. The
information provided was verified and the staff would recommend Langton Group. This bid
will include all parks at the cost of $1465 per week with a contract total of $39,555. The
additional 2 bidders were LR Landscaping LLC and Calderon Landscaping and Snow Removal
LLC. Both of the additional bidders issued the same bid amounts at $3080 per week for a
contract total of $83,160.



















ORDINANCE NO. 2025-0401 

ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN PARK DISTRICT PERSONAL            
 PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL 

WHEREAS, the Berwyn Park District has authority pursuant to 70 ILCS 1205/8-22 to sell or donate 
personal property when three-fifths of the Board of Park Commissioners determines that the property is no longer 
necessary; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners has determined that it is in the Park District’s best interest 
to sell or donate the personal property identified below.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
BERWYN PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:  

SECTION ONE: The Park District hereby finds that the personal property identified on Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof is no longer necessary, useful to or for the best interests of the Park District.  

SECTION TWO: The identified personal property shall be destroyed because it is no longer usable and is 
unable to be repaired. The property is disposed of “AS IS.” In particular, THE SELLER MAKES NO 
WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED ABOUT THE PERFORMANCE 
ABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ABOUT ITS PRESENT STATE OF REPAIR, ABOUT ITS 
CONDITION OR MAINTENANCE, ITS MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE. The person receiving said property may take the property only upon execution of an “indemnification 
and hold harmless agreement” in substantially the same form as Exhibit B.  

SECTION THREE: The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption and shall supersede 
any ordinance or motions or parts of resolutions or motions in conflict with any part herein and any such ordinances 
or motions or parts of ordinances are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.  

SECTION FOUR: If any section, paragraph or provision of this ordinance shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of 
this Ordinance.  

PASSED THIS 1st day of April 2025  

AYES:  

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

APPROVED THIS 1st day of April 2025 

______________________________________   
Brian Brock, President   
Board of Park Commissioners, Berwyn Park District 

ATTEST: ______________________________________ 
Mario Manfredini, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners, Berwyn Park District  



EXHIBIT A  
Administration  
Miscellaneous Gymnastic Equipment 
Miscellaneous Facilities Equipment 
Miscellaneous Program Equipment 

THIS PROPERTY IS BEING DISPOSED OF, AS APPROPRIATE. IT IS DEEMED INOPERABLE AND 
UNABLE TO BE REPAIRED.  

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS ACCEPTED “AS IS”. THE SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTIES 
OR REPRESENTATIONS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED ABOUT THE PERFORMANCE ABILITY OF 
THE PROPERTY, ITS PRESENT STATE OF REPAIR, ITS CONDITIONS OR MAINTENANCE, ITS 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE 



INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

The __________________________________________ (“Buyer/Donee”) agrees to the following 
conditions in consideration of the Berwyn Park District’s sale of certain personal property described below, to wit: 

Buyer/Donee agrees that all understandings and agreements heretofore had between the parties to this 
agreement are merged in this agreement, which alone fully and completely express to this agreement.  

Buyer/Donee represents that it is purchasing/accepting the property described above that it is the subject of 
this agreement “AS IS.” In particular, THE SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATION 
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED ABOUT THE PERFORMANCE ABILITY OF THE SUBJECT ITEM, ABOUT ITS 
PRESENT STATE OF REPAIR, ABOUT ITS CONDITION OR MAINTENANCE, OR ITS MERCHANTABILITY 
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  

Further, that Buyer/Donee agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Berwyn Park District against any and 
all judgments, decrees, costs, expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) or any other loss the Berwyn Park 
District might sustain by reason of the sale of the subject property by the Buyer/Donee.  

Description of property: 

Agreed to this ______ day of _____________________, 2025. 

________________________________  ________________________________ 
Brian Brock, President   _____________________, Buyer/Donee 
Board of Park Commissioners Berwyn Park District 



3701 S Scoville Ave. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

708-788-1701

berwynparks.org 

DATE: 4/2/2025 
TO: The Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Cindy Hayes, Superintendent of Finance and HR 
RE: Closed Session Minutes Schedule 

 Schedule to review Closed Session Minutes. 

  Meeting Date Months of Closed Session Minutes to Review 

April 15 March 2023-September 2023 

May 6 October 2023-April 2024 

May 20 May 2024-October 2024 

June 3 November 2024-April 2025 


	board meeting 4-15-25 agenda
	March 18 2025 minutes
	Scan2025-04-11_144040
	Scan2025-04-11_144201
	Scan2025-04-11_144511
	Scan2025-04-11_144609
	Agency Report 4-15-25
	New Business 4-15-25
	4-1-25 pictures
	Property declared surplus 4-1-25
	schedule of closed minutes



